## Biological Resources Impact Analysis CVL05833, Vintage Park - Florin Sacramento, Sacramento County, California

Prepared for:

#### **AT&T Mobility, LLC** 5001 Executive Parkway San Ramon, CA 94583

Prepared by:

Contact: Kyle Workman, Project Ecologist

Environmental Assessment Specialists, Inc. 71 San Marino Avenue Ventura, CA 93003

August 2, 2024

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1: Introduction	1
Section 2: Methodology	2
2.1 - Biological Resources	2
Section 3: Existing Conditions	3
3.1 - Site Description	3
3.2 - Vegetation	3
3.3 - General Wildlife	3
3.4 - Sensitive Biological Resources	4
Special Status Species	4
3.5 - Jurisdictional Areas	7
Waters of the U.S.	8
Wetlands	8
3.6 - Nesting Birds	9
3.7 - South Sacramento Habitat Conservation Plan	9
Section 4: Sensitive Biological Resources Impact Analysis	10
4.1 - Sensitive Plant and Wildlife Species	
4.2 - Jurisdictional Areas	
4.3 - Nesting Birds	
4.4 - South Sacramento Habitat Conservation Plan	11
Section 5: References	12

#### LIST OF APPENDICES

Appendix A: Field Data Sheets And Site Photographs

#### SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION

This report contains the findings of a Biological Resources Impact Analysis conducted by Environmental Assessment Specialists, Inc. (EAS) on a proposed AT&T Mobility, LLC (AT&T) cellular facility, CVL05833 (Vintage Park - Florin), in Sacramento County, California. The project site is generally located north of State Route 104, south of State Route 50, east of State Route 99, and west of State Route 49, and is depicted on the Florin, California U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) 7.5-minute topographic map.

AT&T proposes the installation of a new unmanned telecommunications facility at this location. Proposed is the installation of a new AT&T 90' mono-eucalyptus with antennas and associated equipment within a 1,225 sq ft lease area and a 15' wide access/utility easement to bring utilities to the location.

The project site was surveyed on February 12, 2024 by qualified EAS biologist Kyle Workman. The biological resources within the site are described in terms of plant communities and jurisdictional drainage features. A literature review provided information regarding sensitive plant and wildlife species potentially occurring within the project site and immediate vicinity. Based on current site conditions and suitable habitat requirements of sensitive species, this report provides an assessment of the sensitive resources found on the site and analyzes the biological significance of the site in view of federal, state, and local laws and policies.

#### SECTION 2: METHODOLOGY

### 2.1 - BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

Data regarding biological resources on the project site were obtained through a literature review that included data on biological resources in the project vicinity and applicable reference materials provided by AT&T.

Sensitive biological resources present, or potentially present, onsite were identified through a literature review using the following resources: California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW 2024), California Natural Diversity Data Base (CNDDB 2024), and the California Native Plant Society (Tibor 2001 and CNPSEI 2024). For the purpose of this report, "sensitive" or "special status" species are those plant or wildlife species that are federally and/or state listed species, proposed for listing, candidate species and CDFW Species of Special Concern.

An initial review indicated that the project site is located within previously disturbed areas associated with a rural residential development. Kyle Workman conducted the biological resources field survey to document existing conditions and to determine potential impacts to sensitive biological resources based on current site plans. The survey was conducted on foot making note of biological resources, such as plant and wildlife species, on field data sheets. These data sheets are included in Appendix A. Special attention was paid to plant communities to determine the presence or potential occurrence of any sensitive species that may occur on the project site.

#### SECTION 3: EXISTING CONDITIONS

#### 3.1 - SITE DESCRIPTION

The biological assessment survey of the project site was conducted on February 12, 2024. Weather conditions included a temperature of approximately 55 degrees Fahrenheit, winds of 1 to 3 miles per hour, and partly cloudy skies. The site is specifically located at residential property at 7991 Sunnyside Way, Sacramento, California. Land use adjacent to the site generally consists of the fallow fields and rural residential development. Previous disturbances on the site include the development and ongoing maintenance of the residential property.

AT&T proposes the installation of a new unmanned telecommunications facility at this location. Proposed is the installation of a new AT&T 90' mono-eucalyptus with antennas and associated equipment within a 1,225 sq ft lease area and a 15' wide access/utility easement to bring utilities to the location.

#### 3.2 - VEGETATION

The project site is located within a previously disturbed area associated with the rural residential property. The proposed lease area will be developed within a fallow field that appears to be routinely disced. Vegetation onsite primarily consists of non-native grasses and ruderal (weedy) species. Ornamental trees and shrubs occur within the immediate vicinity of the project site but will not be impacted by the proposed facility. Common species observed on and within the vicinity of the site include Fan palm (*Washingtonia* sp.), queen palm (*Syagrus romanzoffiana*), pine tree (*Pinus* sp.), and brome grass (*Bromus* sp.). A complete list of plant species observed on or in the vicinity of the project site can be found in Appendix A: Field Data Sheets.

#### 3.3 - GENERAL WILDLIFE

The project site and surrounding area provide habitat for wildlife species that commonly occur in nondisturbed/developed and ornamental communities. No amphibian, reptilian, or mammalian species were observed or detected during the field survey. Avian species observed/detected include:

- House finch (*Carpodacus mexicanus*)
- White-crowned sparrow (Zonotrichia leucophrys)
- Domestic chickens

Other wildlife species expected to occur onsite include side-blotched lizard (*Uta stansburinia*), lesser goldfinch (*Carduelis psaltrina*) and California ground squirrel (*Spermophilus beecheyi*).

## **3.4 - SENSITIVE BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES**

## **Special Status Species**

Special status species are native species that have been accorded special legal or management protection because of concern for their continued existence. There are several categories of protection at both federal and state levels, depending on the magnitude of threat to continued existence and existing knowledge of population levels.

The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) administers the federal Endangered Species Act (ESA). The ESA provides a process for listing species as either threatened or endangered, and methods of protecting listed species. The ESA defines as "endangered" any plant or animal species that is in danger of extinction throughout all or a significant portion of its range. A "threatened" species is a species that is likely to become endangered in the foreseeable future. A "proposed" species is one that has been officially proposed by USFWS for addition to the federal threatened and endangered species list.

Section 9 of the ESA prohibits "take" of threatened or endangered species. The term "take" means to harass, harm, pursue, hunt, shoot, wound, kill, trap, capture, or collect, or to attempt to engage in such conduct. Take can include disturbance to habitats used by a threatened or endangered species during any portion of its life history. The presence of any federally threatened or endangered species that is in a project area generally imposes severe constraints on development, particularly if development would result in take of the species or its habitat. Under the regulations of the ESA, the USFWS may authorize take when it is incidental to, but not the purpose of, an otherwise lawful act.

The California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) administers the California Endangered Species Act (CESA). The State of California considers an "endangered" species one whose prospects of survival and reproduction are in immediate jeopardy, a "threatened" species is one present in such small numbers throughout its range that it is likely to become an endangered species in the near future in the absence of special protection or management, and a "rare" species is one present in such small numbers throughout its range that it may become endangered if its present environment worsens. The term "rare" species applies to California native plants. State threatened and endangered species are fully protected against take, as defined above. "Species of special concern" is an informal designation used by CDFW for some declining wildlife species that are not state candidates. This designation does not provide legal protection, but signifies that these species are recognized as sensitive by CDFW.

The California Native Plant Society (CNPS) has developed an inventory of California's sensitive plant species (Tibor 2001). This inventory summarizes information on the distribution, rarity, and endangerment of California's vascular plants. The inventory is divided into four lists based on the rarity of the species. In addition, the CNPS provides an inventory of plant communities that are considered sensitive by the state and federal resource agencies, academic institutions, and various conservation groups. Determination of the level of sensitivity is based on the number and size of remaining occurrences as well as recognized threats.

Sensitive habitats are natural communities that support concentrations of sensitive plant or wildlife species, are of relatively limited distribution, or are of particular value to wildlife (CNDDB 2024). Sensitive habitats are not afforded legal protection unless they support protected species, except for wetland habitats, which cannot be filled without authorization from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) and CDFW.

The following discussion describes the special-status plants, wildlife, and habitats that have been afforded special recognition by federal, state, or local resource agencies or organizations and are known to occur in the region of the project site. Sources used for the classification of sensitive resources are as follows:

- Plants California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW March 2024), California Natural Diversity Data Base (CNDDB 2024), and California Native Plant Society (Tibor 2001 and CNPSEI 2024)
- Habitats CNDDB (2024), Holland (1986)
- Wildlife CDFW (March 2024), CNDDB (2024)

A review of the CNDDB and the CNPS Electronic Inventory of Rare and Endangered Vascular Plants resulted in a list of 10 sensitive plant species, 35 sensitive wildlife species, and 1 sensitive plant community that occur within the Florin, California USGS topographic quadrangle.

The sensitive plant species include:

- Alkali-sink goldfields (Lasthenia chrysantha)
- Dwarf downingia (Downingia pusilla)
- Heckard's pepper-grass (Lepidium latipes var. heckardii)
- Hogwallow starfish (*Hesperevax caulescens*)
- Legenere (Legenere limosa)
- Parry's rough tarplant (*Centromadia parryi* ssp. *rudis*)

- Peruvian dodder (Cuscuta obtusiflora var. glandulosa)
- Saline clover (Trifolium hydrophilum)
- Sanford's arrowhead (Sagittaria sanfordii)
- Woolly rose-mallow (Hibiscus lasiocarpos var. occidentalis)

Proposed development will be contained within previously disturbed areas associated with the residential development. This disturbance includes excavation, backfilling, and compaction activities resulting from previous construction and maintenance activities. Evidence of surface disturbance on and in the immediate vicinity of the site has greatly reduced the potential for sensitive plant species to occupy the area. Therefore, none of the above-listed sensitive plant species are anticipated to occur onsite, and the proposed project is not anticipated to result in any impacts to sensitive plant species. No further action is recommended with regard to sensitive plant species.

The sensitive wildlife species include:

- American badger (*Taxidea taxus*)
- American bittern (Botaurus lentiginosus)
- Black-crowned night heron (*Nycticorax nycticorax*)
- Burrowing owl (Athene cunicularia)
- California least tern (Sternula antillarum browni)
- California linderiella (Linderiella occidentalis)
- Cooper's hawk (Accipiter cooperi)
- Double-crested cormorant (*Phalacrocorax auritus*)
- Ferruginous hawk (Buteo regalis)
- Giant gartersnake (Thamnophis gigas)
- Grasshopper sparrow (Ammodramus savannarum)
- Great blue heron (*Aredea herodias*)
- Great egret (Ardea alba)
- Greater sandhill crane (Antigone canadensis tabida)
- Hoary bat (Lasiurus cinereus)
- Least bittern (Ixobrychus exilis)
- Little brown bat (*Myotis lucifugus*)
- Loggerhead shrike (Lanius ludovicianus)
- Longfin smelt (Spirinchus thaleichthys)
- Merlin (Falco columbarius)
- Midvalley fairy shrimp (Branchinecta mesovallensis)
- Snowy egret (Egretta thula)

- Song sparrow (Melospiza melodia)
- Steelhead south/central California coast ESU (Oncorhynchus mykiss irideus)
- Straight-awned spineflower (Chorizanthe rectispina)
- Swainson's hawk (Buteo swainsoni)
- Tricolored blackbird (Agelaius tricolor)
- Vernal pool fairy shrimp (Branchinecta lynchi)
- Vernal poos tadpole shrimp (Lepidurus packardi)
- Western pond turtle (*Actinemys marmorata*)
- Western red bat (Lasiurus blossevillii)
- White-tailed kite (Elanus leucurus)
- Yellow warbler (Dendroica petechia brewsteri)
- Yellow-headed blackbird (Xanthocephalus xanthocephalus)
- Yuma myotis (Myotis yumanensis)

Proposed development will be contained within previously disturbed areas associated with the residential development. No portions of the proposed development footprint contain the important habitat suitability elements for any of the above-listed sensitive wildlife species; none are likely to occur within the proposed development footprint itself. Therefore, no direct impacts are anticipated to result to any sensitive wildlife species and their habitat from implementation of the proposed project.

The sensitive plant communities include:

• Northern hardpan vernal pool

No sensitive plant communities occur on the project site.

#### 3.5 - JURISDICTIONAL AREAS

The USACE regulates discharges of dredged or fill material into waters of the United States. These waters include wetlands and non-wetland bodies of water that meet specific criteria. USACE regulatory jurisdiction pursuant to Section 404 of the federal Clean Water Act is founded on a connection or nexus between the water body in question and interstate commerce. This connection may be direct through a tributary system, linking a stream channel with traditional navigable waters used in interstate or foreign commerce, or may be indirect, through a nexus identified in the USACE regulations.

## Waters of the U.S.

USACE jurisdiction over non-tidal waters of the United States extends laterally to the ordinary high water mark (OHWM) or beyond the OHWM to the limit of any adjacent wetlands, if present (33 CFR 328.4). The OHWM is defined as "that line on the shore established by the fluctuations of water and indicated by physical characteristics such as a clear natural line impressed on the bank, shelving, changes in the character of soil, destruction of terrestrial vegetation, the presence of litter and debris, or other appropriate means that consider the characteristics of the surrounding area" [33 CFR 329.11(a) (1)]. Jurisdiction typically extends upstream to the point where the OHWM is no longer perceptible. Recently, the federal courts have restricted USACE jurisdiction over waters that are not directly connected to traditional navigable waters (isolated waters), thereby increasing the focus on clearly establishing the physical connection between the subject water body(ies) as a tributary to traditional navigable waters or otherwise by directly establishing the nexus with interstate commerce.

During the biological assessment survey, the site was evaluated according to the guidelines provided in the USACE 1987 Manual (i.e. Environmental Laboratory, 1987). Waters of the U.S. were absent from the site; no water bodies having a perceptible OHWM were identified on site or adjacent to the site.

#### Wetlands

The USACE and EPA define "wetlands" as "areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or groundwater at a frequency and duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of vegetation typically adapted to life in saturated soil conditions." In order to be considered a jurisdictional wetland under Section 404, an area must possess three wetland characteristics: hydrophytic vegetation, hydric soils, and wetland hydrology. Each characteristic has a specific set of mandatory wetland criteria that must be satisfied in order for that particular wetland characteristic to be met. Several parameters may be analyzed to determine whether the criteria are satisfied.

The project site and surrounding area contain plant species commonly found in disturbed/developed and ornamental communities. No hydrophytic plant species were observed on the project site; therefore, it was not necessary to examine the other two wetland criteria (hydrology and soils), since all three criteria must be met where wetlands are present. No jurisdictional wetlands will be impacted by the installation of the proposed facility.

#### 3.6 - NESTING BIRDS

The Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) protects all common wild birds found in the United States except the house sparrow, starling, feral pigeon, and resident Wildlife birds such as pheasant, grouse, quail, and wild turkey. Resident Wildlife birds are managed separately by each state. The MBTA makes it unlawful for anyone to kill, capture, collect, possess, buy, sell, trade, ship, import, or export any migratory bird including feathers, parts, nests, or eggs.

California Fish and Game (CFG) Code 3503 makes it illegal to destroy any birds' nest or any birds' eggs that are protected under the MBTA. CFG Code 3503.5 further protects all birds in the orders *Falconiformes* and *Strigiformes* (birds of prey, such as hawks and owls) and their eggs and nests from any form of take.

No avian nests or nesting activity were observed during the field survey. The trees located within the immediate vicinity of the project site provide suitable avian nesting habitat.

### 3.7 - SOUTH SACRAMENTO HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN

The proposed project is not expected to conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, however, project-specific requirements may be conditioned upon project application with the City of Sacramento. The project site occurs within the boundaries of South Sacramento Habitat Conservation Plan (SSHCP); therefore the proposed project may be required to demonstrate project consistency with the provisions of this plan. No significant impacts to the long-term conservation goals and objectives of the SSHCP are anticipated to result from the proposed project. The City of Sacramento will likely implement exemptions based on the limited size and operational requirements of the proposed project.

#### SECTION 4: SENSITIVE BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES IMPACT ANALYSIS

#### 4.1 - SENSITIVE PLANT AND WILDLIFE SPECIES

- Sensitive Plant Species: The project site contains no suitable habitat for any sensitive plant species. Therefore, no sensitive plant species have a moderate or high potential to occur onsite and focused surveys are not recommended.
- Sensitive Wildlife Species: The project site contains no suitable habitat for any sensitive wildlife species. Therefore, no sensitive wildlife species have a moderate or high potential to occur onsite and focused surveys are not recommended.
- Sensitive Plant Communities: No sensitive plant communities occur on the project site; none will be impacted by the proposed development.

### 4.2 - JURISDICTIONAL AREAS

No potentially jurisdictional waters or wetlands are present on or in the vicinity of the project site. Therefore, installation of the proposed facility will not impact any jurisdictional areas.

## 4.3 - NESTING BIRDS

The trees and shrubs located within the immediate vicinity of the project site provide suitable nesting habitat for several avian species. Additionally, although not considered natural nesting habitat, the existing facility provides suitable nest sites. Therefore, pursuant to the MBTA and CFG Code, installation of the proposed facility should be conducted outside the nesting season (February 1 - September 30).

If facility installation must occur during the nesting season, a qualified biologist should conduct a nesting bird survey to identify any potential nesting activity. If active nests are observed, construction activity must be prohibited within a 500-foot (~160-meter) buffer around the nest until the nestlings have fledged. All construction activity within the vicinity of active nests must be conducted in the presence of a qualified biological monitor. Construction activity may encroach into the buffer area at the discretion of the biological monitor.

### 4.4 - SOUTH SACRAMENTO HABITAT CONSERVATION PLAN

The proposed project is not expected to conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, however, project-specific requirements may be conditioned upon project application with the City of Sacramento. The project site occurs within the boundaries of South Sacramento Habitat Conservation Plan (SSHCP); therefore the proposed project may be required to demonstrate project consistency with the provisions of this plan. No significant impacts to the long-term conservation goals and objectives of the SSHCP are anticipated to result from the proposed project. The City of Sacramento will likely implement exemptions based on the limited size and operational requirements of the proposed project.

#### SECTION 5: REFERENCES

- Burt, W. and Grossenheider, R. 1980. Peterson Field Guides to Mammals. Houghton Mifflin Company, New York, New York.
- California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), 2024 (March). Endangered and Threatened Animals List. The Resources Agency of California, Department of Fish and Wildlife, Natural Heritage Division, Natural Diversity Data Base. Sacramento, California.
- California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), 2024 (April). Endangered, Threatened, and Rare Plants. The Resources Agency of California, Department of Fish and Wildlife, Natural Heritage Division, Natural Diversity Data Base. Sacramento, California.
- California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), 2024 (January). Special Animals List. The Resources Agency of California, Department of Fish and Wildlife, Natural Heritage Division, Natural Diversity Data Base. Sacramento, California.
- California Department of Fish and Game (CDFG). 2003 (September). Natural Communities List. The Resources Agency of California, Department of Fish and Game, Natural Diversity Data Base. Sacramento, California.
- California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 2024 (April). Special Vascular Plants, Bryophytes, and Lichens List. The Resources Agency of California, Department of Fish and Wildlife, Natural Heritage Division, Natural Diversity Data Base. Sacramento, California.
- California Native Plant Society Electronic Inventory (CNPSEI). 2024. Retrieved from http://cnps.web.aplus.net/cgi-bin/inv/inventory.cgi
- California Natural Diversity Data Base (CNDDB). 2024. RareFind 5 personal computer program. Data Base Record Search for Information on Threatened, Endangered, Rare, or Otherwise Sensitive Species for the Florin, California USGS Topographic Quadrangles. California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Natural Heritage Division. Sacramento, California.
- Hickman, J. C. 1993. The Jepson Manual: Higher Plants of California. University of California Press. Berkeley, California.
- Holland, R. F. 1986. Preliminary Descriptions of the Terrestrial Natural Communities of California. Non-Wildlife Heritage Program. California Department of Fish and Wildlife. Sacramento.
- Munz, P. A. 1974. A Flora of Southern California. University of California Press. Berkeley, California.
- Stebbins, R. C. 2003. A Field Guide to Western Reptiles and Amphibians. 3rd ed. Houghton-Mifflin Company. Boston, Massachusetts.
- Tibor, D. P. 2001. California Native Plant Society's Inventory of Rare and Endangered Plants of California. California Native Plant Society. Special Publication, No. 1, 6th ed.
- Udvardy, M.D. 1994. National Audubon Society Field Guide to North American Birds. Alfred A. Knopf, Inc. New York, New York.



1 inch equals 250 feet

## **Project Location**

Figure 1

CVL05833



1 inch equals 250 feet

## **SSHCP Land Cover**

Figure 2

Appendix A: Field Data Sheets and Site Photographs

#### Field Notes - CVL05833

Date: February 12, 2024

Location: Sacramento, Sacramento County, California

Time: 11:05 am to 12:00 pm

Weather Conditions: 1 to 3 mile per hour winds, partly cloudy skies with a temperature of 55 degrees

**Plant Community/Site description:** Site will be located within a fallow field at a rural residential property. The entire project site appears to be routinely disced and vegetation consists of non-native grasses and annual species. Ornamental trees and shrubs occur within the vicinity of the site but will not be impacted by the facility.

#### Wildlife Species Observed:

House finch (*Carpodacus mexicanus*) White-crowned sparrow (*Zonotrichia leucophrys*) Domestic chickens

#### **Plant Species Observed:**

pine tree (*Pinus* sp.) brome grass (*Bromus* sp.) Fan palm (*Washingtonia* sp.) Fig cactus (*Opuntia* sp.) queen palm (*Syagrus romanzoffiana*)



Photograph 1: View of candidate location; facing north



Photograph 2: View of candidate location; facing east



Photograph 3: View of candidate location; facing south



Photograph 4: View of candidate location; facing west



Photograph 5: View from candidate location; facing north



Photograph 6: View from candidate location; facing east



Photograph 7: View from candidate location; facing south



Photograph 8: View from candidate location; facing west



Photograph 9: Overview of utility route from proposed lease area; facing south



Photograph 10: Approximate location for new 17"x30" box power P.O.C.; facing west



Photograph 11: Overview of general area west of proposed candidate area; facing north



# KYLE D. WORKMAN, BIOLOGIST

#### OVERVIEW

• Bachelor's degree Environmental Science and Ecology – Western State College of Colorado

Kyle Workman is a project biologist with range of project experience in the environmental field. Mr. Workman has inventoried plants and wildlife and has conducted biological assessments and restoration monitoring surveys for various projects throughout the western United States and Hawaii. He has experience in water quality analysis, nest search techniques, habitat analyses, and has conducted research on aquatic insects.

#### RELATED EXPERIENCE

**NEPA Compliance/Telecommunication Facilities.** Assisting a variety of telecommunication providers throughout Arizona, California, Hawaii, Idaho, Nevada, New Mexico, Oregon, Utah and Washington in complying with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) for the implementation of cellular communication facilities. This project includes the preparation of NEPA compliance documents in accordance with the Federal Communication Commissions regulations pertaining to telecommunication facilities, in particular, biological surveys, including focused sensitive species surveys and wetland delineations and permitting, construction monitoring, and arborist surveys. Reports are prepared associated with field surveys, reviews and project compliance include biological resources assessment reports, nesting bird survey letters, and focused plant and wildlife survey reports. Regularly prepare budgets and scopes of work for clients.

**Section 7 consultations.** Routinely conduct informal and formal section 7 consultation for proposed projects located within USFWS designated Critical Habitat. Work has involved effects analyses of projects, appropriate mitigation measures, and concurrence letters. Consultation has resulted in the approval of numerous projects located within Critical Habitat for sensitive species, which include California red-legged frog, Alameda whipsnake, California gnatcatcher, desert tortoise, and delta smelt.

**Biological Resources Impact Analysis.** Conducted biological assessments for various clients in Southern California. Field surveys involved inventorying plant and wildlife species, vegetation mapping, sensitive species habitat assessments, and jurisdictional drainage feature evaluations. Biological Resources Survey Reports are prepared to discuss the findings of the biological assessments.

Western Riverside County Multiple Habitat Conservation Plan (MSHCP) Consistency Analysis. Conducted habitat assessments throughout Riverside County, CA, with particular emphasis on sensitive plant and wildlife species including burrowing owl, least Bell's vireo, San Miguel savory, and many-stemmed dudleya. Field surveys and reports also include Riverine/Riparian analysis and urban/wildlands interface analysis as described by the MSHCP. Prepared various reports including MSHCP Consistency Analysis Reports, focused survey reports for burrowing owl, least Bell's vireo, and San Miguel savory, and Determination of Biological Equivalency or Superior Preservation Reports.

Habitat Restoration, Enhancement, and Conservation. Assisted numerous clients in management and monitoring of multiple restoration projects. Responsibilities have included inventorying native and non-native plant species, conducting monthly, quarterly, and annual monitoring surveys analyzing wildlife use, making recommendations for remedial measures necessary to achieve performance standards, and preparing various monitoring reports.

**Biological Monitoring and Compliance.** Assisted numerous clients throughout Southern California during all aspects of construction. This project included ongoing monitoring for compliance with USFWS, CDFG, and USACE rules and regulations for the project site and included erosion control monitoring and permit compliance. The assessment included monitoring all aspects of ground disturbing activity including tree removal, vegetation grubbing, and mass grading. The effort also involved inventorying plant and wildlife species. Has included leading weekly training sessions for construction personnel to inform them of biological issues.

**Burrowing owl focused surveys.** Conducted numerous focused surveys for burrowing owls for a variety of clients and projects in San Bernardino, Orange, and Riverside Counties. Surveys involved data collection on burrowing owl numbers, behavior, locations, occupied burrows, and sign. Coordinated a project that involved the passive relocation of burrowing owls and mitigation through the construction and monitoring of artificial burrows. The effort involved agency coordination, budgeting and scoping the work effort, organizing client meetings, and assigning work efforts to appropriate staff. Reports were prepared to document findings.

**Desert tortoise focused surveys.** Conducted numerous focused protocol surveys for desert tortoise for various projects in San Bernardino, Kern and Riverside Counties. Surveys involved data collection on suitable tortoise habitat, potential burrow locations and the documentation of findings in focused survey reports.

Least Bell's vireo focused surveys. Conducted numerous focused protocol surveys for least Bell's vireo for projects in Riverside County. Located numerous territories at various project sites and documented findings in focused surveyed reports.

#### **PROFESSIONAL TRAINING**

CNPS Vegetation and Habitat Rapid Assessment Workshop 8/05 Construction Storm Water Compliance Workshop 9/05 Desert Tortoise Handling Workshop and Certification 11/06 Basic Wetland Delineation Training - Portland State University 3/08